

# Minutes Montana Board of Regents November 21-22, 2024

# Thursday, November 21st, 2024

Meeting convened at 8:32 a.m.

Regents Present: Todd Buchanan, Chair, Loren Bough, Vice Chair, Joyce Dombrouski, Casey Lozar, Dean Folkvord, and Raina Mortenson. Regent Southworth was excused. Ex officio members present included Commissioner of Higher Education, Clayton Christian, Superintendent of Public Instruction, Elsie Arntzen, and Governor Greg Gianforte.

Welcome by Chair Buchanan | 00:00:00\*

Chair Buchanan welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked President Cruzado to begin her presentation.

Welcome by President Cruzado | 00:08:07

President Cruzado gave an overview of the programs at MSU and MSU's ongoing support of veteran students. She discussed annual research expenditures, various resources available on campus, the expansion of WWAMI and WIMU, new academic programs, an update on grants, and an update on the Innovation Campus. President Cruzado presented a slide show highlighting the changes on campus during her time as president over the past 14 years, along with all the upcoming projects that are in process.

Comments by Chair Buchanan | 00:31:35

Chair Buchanan thanked President Cruzado and her team for hosting the meeting and noted that the discussion of the Regents' breakfast with MUSFAR centered around the value proposition of higher education. He welcomed the faculty representative and the Tribal College representative to the meeting. He discussed his attendance at the AIMA Council on Wednesday, commented on the successes Montana is experiencing with American Indian enrollment and retention, and praised the organization for advancing those successes. Chair Buchanan reviewed the agenda.

Approval of Minutes | 00:37:10

• September 18-19, 2024 Meeting Minutes

With no corrections offered, the minutes were approved as distributed.

\*Due to technical difficulties, the audio/video recording did not begin until 00:08:07



## Commissioner's and System Report | 00:37:19

Commissioner Christian welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked President Cruzado and her staff for hosting the meeting. He paid tribute to President Cruzado and her accomplishments during her leadership at MSU. He expressed his appreciation to everyone in the MUS at every level for continuing to make the system thrive. He said the Governor's budget has been released and thanked the Governor for his proposed investments in and support of the MUS. He gave a brief Gear Up program and funding update.

Search Update/Department of Education Update | 00:45:33

Commissioner Christian updated the Board on the search for a new president at MSU and new chancellor at Montana Tech and discussed the process for both searches. He noted that the final decisions will go to the board for approval.

Commissioner Christian noted that there are questions coming up across the country regarding the future of the federal Department of Education and said that OCHE will be closely monitoring the developments. He said some of the federal programs will have to remain intact but how federal programs are administered will be a topic of debate.

• Enrollment Report | 00:54:13

Scott Lemmon, Director of Admissions and Enrollment Strategy, reported on systemwide year over year Fall enrollment numbers. He discussed the overall enrollment landscape for first-year freshmen, FTEs, and total headcount. Director Lemmon reported gains in every area across the MUS and discussed recent high school student capture rates and the statewide projections for upcoming high school graduates. Discussion followed.

Resolution on Math Proficiency | 01:19:04

Interim Deputy Commissioner of Academic, Research & Student Affairs, Joe Thiel, provided an overview of the multi-state agency collaboration and presented a proposed resolution to address math proficiency in Montana. Discussion followed.

- Campus Reports | *01:25:00*
- Introductions & Acknowledgments | 01:25:43

Chancellor Kegel, MSU Northern, introduced Dr. Tiffany Vickers, Dean of the College of Health Sciences.

Chancellor Hicswa, MSUB, introduced Vern Gagnon, Dean of City College.

Interim Deputy Commissioner Thiel congratulated Ange DeWolf King, OCHE Director of Transfer and Special Projects, for receiving the Governor's Award for Excellence.



## Budget, Administration and Audit Committee | 01:52:48

**CONSENT** | *01:54:07* 

#### Staff Item:

a. Labor Agreement; MUS ITEM 215-100-R1124 | Attachment #1

Kerry Davant, Executive Director of Human Resources and Labor Relations, presented a summary of the collective bargaining agreements within the system, focusing on the newly negotiated agreement between the Montana University System (MUS) and the Montana Federation of Public Employees (MFPE) on behalf of the University of Montana graduate students. Executive Director Davant recommended approval of the proposed agreement.

## **Facility Items:**

- Request for Authorization to Lease Agricultural Land for the Montana Agricultural Experiment Station (MAES); MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2301-R1124 | Attachment #1
- c. Request for Authorization to Lease Space for MilTech; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2003-R1124 | Attachment #1
- d. Request for authorization to design and construct renovations on the third and fourth floors of Hamilton Hall; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2002-R1124 | Attachment #1
- e. Request for Authorization to Design and Construct a Fire Alarm System Replacement for the Brick Breeden Fieldhouse; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2001-R1124 | Attachment #1
- f. Request for Authorization to Grant a Sewer Easement to the City of Missoula for the New Residence Hall; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1009-R1124 | Attachment #1 Attachment #2 | Attachment #3 | Attachment #4
- g. Request for Authorization to Grant a Guy Wire Easement to NorthWestern Energy; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1008-R1124 | Attachment #1
- h. Request for Authorization to Increase Project Authority for the Study of UM's Southwest Quadrant; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1006-R1124 | Attachment #1

#### Other Item:

 Request for Approval to Revise Board of Regents Policy 203.3.3, Board of Regents Policy and Procedures; MUS/OCHE ITEM 215-103-R1124 | Attachment #1

Deputy Commissioner Tyler Trevor said Item i. is a revision to when and how Board policies should be updated and improved. Discussion followed.



 a. Request for Authorization to Transfer Interest in Real Property; Vigilante Stadium to Beaverhead County High School; UM Western ITEM 215-1602-R1124 | Attachment #1 | Attachment #2 | Attachment #3

Chancellor Reid, UM Western, said that with the completion of the new stadium, UM Western would like to transfer the old stadium to Beaverhead County High School. He said all parties involved agree with the proposed transfer.

 Request for Authorization to Issue Bonds to Finance a New Residence Hall; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1011-R1124 | Attachment #1

Deputy Commissioner Trevor said this is a request for the issuance of \$69 million in revenue bonds to ensure UM will receive necessary proceeds to meet project costs.

c. Request Authorization to Execute Energy Performance Contracts (EPC) for Multi-year, Multi-phased Projects to Address Deferred Maintenance, Reduce Utility Costs and Improve Energy Efficiency; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2004-R1124 | Attachment #1 | Attachment #2

Dan Stevenson, Director of Facilities Planning, gave an in-depth report on what energy contracts are, how they are financed, and how they are utilized by the campus.

# **INFORMATION** | 02:12:24

a. Executive Budget Overview

Deputy Commissioner Trevor reviewed the Governor's proposed budget for the MUS. He discussed present law adjustments, the pay plan, Long Range Building Program projects, and MUS Initiatives. Discussion followed.

b. System-wide Facilities Planning

Dan Stevenson, Director of Facilities Planning, said that system-wide facilities planning will start in late 2024 with the formation of working advisory groups at MSU-Bozeman, UM-Missoula, and across the affiliate campuses throughout the system. Planning will include assembling accurate and consistent facilities data; determining the appropriate key performance metrics at the campus and system levels; and applying analytics to this data to inform decision-making. The end goal is to arrive at strategic capital planning and resource management. The presentation concluded with a review of Capital Investment Analytics developed for Montana State University-Bozeman.

Academic, Research and Student Affairs Committee | 04:31:26

**CONSENT** | 04:31:37

Staff Items:



a. Request for Authorization to Exclude Certain Officers/Directors from Personnel Security Clearance; MUS/OCHE ITEM 215-102-R1124 | Attachment #1

## **Emeriti Faculty:**

- b. Arnold; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2010-R1124
- c. Inskeep; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2011-R1124
- d. Maxwell; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2012-R1124
- e. O'Neill; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2013-R1124
- f. Brown; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2014-R1124
- g. Haynes; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2015-R1124
- h. Held; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2016-R1124
- i. Lavin; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2017-R1124
- j. Walker; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2018-R1124
- k. Carter; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1005-R1124
- Lo: UM Missoula ITEM 215-1010-R1124
- m. Miller; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1012-R1124
- n. Burns; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1013-R1124
- Richter: UM Missoula ITEM 215-1014-R1124
- p. Daenzer; UM Western ITEM 215-1601-R1124

# **Tenure Faculty:**

q. MSU Bozeman; ITEM 215-2000-R1124

# **ACTION** | 04:32:59

a. Honorary Doctorate, UM Missoula ITEM 215-1007-R1124 | Attachment #1

Seth Bodnar, UM President, presented the request to award an honorary doctorate to William Marcus.

The Academic, Research, & Student Affairs Committee briefly paused so the board could hear remarks from Superintendent Arntzen, after which it continued with Action Item b.

Remarks by Superintendent Arntzen | 04:36:16



Superintendent Arntzen reported on the K-12 summative test assessment and the teacher residency program. She announced that Dawn Sievers from Power, Montana, has been awarded Montana's Teacher of the Year.

b. Request to Plan Proposals | OCHE Executive Summary | Supporting Documents

Dr. Joy Honea, MSU Billings, presented the request to plan proposal for a Master of Science in Criminal Justice.

Dr. Johnny MacLean, UM Western Provost, presented the request to plan proposal for a Minor in Professional Communications and Minor in Environmental Writing.

Dr. Adrea Lawrence, UM Provost, presented the request to plan proposal for concentrations for the Master of Fine Arts in Theater, concentrations in the Bachelor of Music, and Bachelor of Arts in Music, and a Master in Natural Resource Management. She also presented the request to plan proposal for Academic Organizational Structure with an in-depth overview of the plan. Discussion followed.

Dr. Tim Elgren, Montana Tech Provost, presented the request to plan proposal for dual credit for recruiting corrections officers, an online program for a certificate in Behavioral Health, and a Certificate in Applied Science in Behavioral Health.

# **INFORMATION** | *05:27:26*

## a. Academic Approval Items

Interim Deputy Commissioner Thiel said these are items that have reached the next stage of development in the final approval process.

b. Academic Processes Update

Interim Deputy Commissioner Thiel discussed the process of evaluating the criteria and guidelines used when new academic programs are being developed.

c. Sprint Degree Panel

Angela DeWolf King, Director of Transfer and Special Projects, reported on MUS Sprint Degrees. Director King shared some highlights from current cohorts and graduates, as well as student motivations for selecting the program. The update was followed by a panel of students and employers discussing their experiences with the Sprint program. Discussion followed.

## d. Montana Online Course Exchange

Interim Deputy Commissioner Thiel said the online course exchange allows collaboration on academics by creating a common online course catalog across the MUS to improve the student experience. He listed the campuses that are participating. He gave a detailed overview of how the common course catalog works and the opportunities it provides to students. Discussion followed



## e. MUS Research Update

Interim Deputy Commissioner Thiel reported on MUS research expenditures, activity, and growth. He provided an overview of current grant submissions and funds being requested. He gave an update on research award statistics and shared some of the changes underway and the potential impact on research. Discussion followed.

## f. Headwaters Tech Hub

Dr.Tim VanReken, Headwaters Tech Hub (HTH) Executive Director and Regional Innovation Officer, reported on what a Tech Hub is and the vision for Tech Hubs across the nation. He spoke about the trajectory and growth of tech companies in Montana. He discussed HTH's vision, projected impact in the next 10 years, the project portfolio, and the leadership at the HTH office. Discussion followed!

# g. National Security Research and Industry Panel

Al Deibert, Program Manager, MilTech, gave a presentation outlining what MilTech is, its mission, core competencies, projects completed, and the impact on Montana, along with funding received.

Dr. Tom Gallagher, Associate Vice Provost, UM, and Dean, Missoula College, detailed ongoing efforts across the state to enhance cybersecurity through workforce development. He gave an overview of the Centers of Academic Excellence and Cyber Defense (CAE CD) program and other ways the cybersecurity workforce shortage is being addressed. He provided an update on the Montana CyberRange, CyberHub, and the Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency.

Chris Huddleston, IT Supervisor, Ravalli Electric Cooperative, provided an overview of how some of the technologies are being used by the company. He stressed the importance of continuing education to stay up to date. He addressed some of the cybersecurity challenges they are facing as a co-op. Discussion followed.

# Public Comment | 07:44:57

Butch Damberger, MSU staff, thanked President Cruzado for all her success during her time at MSU and wished her a happy retirement.

Elizabeth Olson, staff at MSU IT, thanked President Cruzado for all her accomplishments at the university.

Michael Stanley, Chief of University Police, MSU, recognized and thanked President Cruzado for her leadership and commitment to campus safety.

Jeannette Grey Gilbert, Chief Human Resources Officer, MSU, expressed her gratitude to President Cruzado from the Human Resource department.

Kim Anderson, employee in Financial Services, MSU, shared her gratitude for President Cruzado and for her leadership and support.



Jeff Bondi, representing the MSU housing staff, thanked President Cruzado for all she has done for MSU, especially in the housing department.

# Friday, November 22<sup>nd</sup>, 2024

Meeting Convened at 08:30 am

## Two Year and Community College Committee | 00:02:59:

## **INFORMATION** | 00:03:39

## a. 2023-2024 Dual Credit Enrollment Report

Director of Dual Enrollment and CTE, Jacque Treaster, reported on recent Dual Enrollment data, noting that participation every year has exceeded the last. She said the credit hours are also increasing, as is CTE Dual Enrollment.

#### b. Dual Enrollment Panel

Director Treaster asked the panelists to introduce themselves. Panelists included Bert Horsley, Assistant Principal at Belgrade High School, Emiliana and Aggie Kelm, Dual Enrollment students, and Sadie Kelm, a mother of Dual Enrollment students and a homeschool teacher. The panelists discussed their experiences with Dual Enrollment, some of the challenges they have encountered, and how Dual Enrollment has helped them move forward. Discussion followed.

# d. Efforts underway to support Sibanye-Stillwater Mine

Mike Hopkins, MT Job Service Workforce Services Division Bureau Chief, discussed the steps a company goes through when initiating a substantial layoff and the rapid response required by Job Service to provide employment opportunities, help with filing for unemployment, and assist with unemployment insurance for laid off workers. He said federal funding has been requested to help support these workers and said Job Service's rapid response remains with the workers until they are reemployed in a job that suits their needs. Discussion followed.

## Public Comment | 00:47:02

Tracy Ellig, Vice President of Communications, MSU, expressed his gratitude to President Cruzado for her dedication to students and to the Hilleman Scholars Program.

Julie Kipfer, Chief Marketing Officer, MSU, expressed her gratitude to President Cruzado for her dedication and grit.

Nicholas Conlin, student at Montana Tech, discussed his opposition to decisions made on his disability accommodations, financial aid, and degree conferral.



Resolution on Math Proficiency

A motion for approval of board item Resolution on Math Proficiency, was made by Regent Dombrouski; motion passed (6-0).

Budget, Administration and Audit Committee

## **CONSENT**

## Staff Item:

a. Labor Agreement; MUS ITEM 215-100-R1124 | Attachment #1

# **Facility Items:**

- Request for Authorization to Lease Agricultural Land for the Montana Agricultural Experiment Station (MAES); MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2301-R1124 | Attachment #1
- c. Request for Authorization to Lease Space for MilTech; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2003-R1124 | Attachment #1
- d. Request for authorization to design and construct renovations on the third and fourth floors of Hamilton Hall; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2002-R1124 | Attachment #1
- Request for Authorization to Design and Construct a Fire Alarm System
   Replacement for the Brick Breeden Fieldhouse; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2001-R1124 | Attachment #1
- f. Request for Authorization to Grant a Sewer Easement to the City of Missoula for the New Residence Hall; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1009-R1124 | Attachment #1 Attachment #2 | Attachment #3 | Attachment #4
- g. Request for Authorization to Grant a Guy Wire Easement to NorthWestern Energy; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1008-R1124 | Attachment #1
- h. Request for Authorization to Increase Project Authority for the Study of UM's Southwest Quadrant; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1006-R1124 | Attachment #1

## Other Item:

 Request for Approval to Revise Board of Regents Policy 203.3.3, Board of Regents Policy and Procedures; MUS/OCHE ITEM 215-103-R1124 | Attachment #1

A motion for approval of consent items a.- i. was made by Regent Folkvord; motion passed (6-0).

## **ACTION**

 Request for Authorization to Transfer Interest in Real Property; Vigilante Stadium to Beaverhead County High School; UM Western ITEM 215-1602-R1124 | Attachment #1 | Attachment #2 | Attachment #3



A motion for approval of action item a., ITEM 215-1602-R1124, was made by Regent Bough; motion passed (6-0).

 Request for Authorization to Issue Bonds to Finance a New Residence Hall; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1011-R1124 | Attachment #1

A motion for approval of action item b., ITEM 215-1011-R1124, was made by Regent Dombrouski; motion passed (6-0).

c. Request Authorization to Execute Energy Performance Contracts (EPC) for Multi-year, Multi-phased Projects to Address Deferred Maintenance, Reduce Utility Costs and Improve Energy Efficiency; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2004-R1124 | Attachment #1 | Attachment #2

A motion for approval of action item c., ITEM 215-2004-R1124, was made by Regent Lozar; motion passed (6-0)

Academic, Research and Student Affairs Committee | 00:58:23

### CONSENT

## Staff Items:

a. Request for Authorization to Exclude Certain Officers/Directors from Personnel Security Clearance; MUS/OCHE ITEM 215-102-R1124 | Attachment #1

## **Emeriti Faculty:**

- b. Arnold; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2010-R1124
- c. Inskeep; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2011-R1124
- d. Maxwell; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2012-R1124
- e. O'Neill; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2013-R1124
- f. Brown; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2014-R1124
- g. Haynes; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2015-R1124
- h. Held; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2016-R1124
- i. Lavin; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2017-R1124
- j. Walker; MSU Bozeman ITEM 215-2018-R1124
- k. Carter; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1005-R1124
- I. Lo; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1010-R1124
- m. Miller; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1012-R1124
- n. Burns; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1013-R1124



- o. Richter; UM Missoula ITEM 215-1014-R1124
- p. Daenzer; UM Western ITEM 215-1601-R1124

## **Tenure Faculty:**

q. MSU Bozeman; ITEM 215-2000-R1124

A motion for approval of consent items a.- q., was made by Regent Folkvord; motion passed (6-0).

## **ACTION**

- a. Honorary Doctorate, UM Missoula ITEM 215-1007-R1124 | Attachment #1 A motion for approval of action item a., ITEM 215-1007-R1124, was made by Regent Dombrouski; motion passed (6-0).
- b. Request to Plan Proposals | OCHE Executive Summary | Supporting Documents A motion for approval of action item b., Request to Plan Proposals, was made by Regent Folkvord; motion passed (6-0)

Appeal #1 Appeal #2

Chair Buchanan explained the process related to appeals. He called for a motion to hear the appeals. No motion was made to hear the appeals, and therefore the Commissioner's decisions were upheld.

The meeting recessed at 10:30 a.m.

| Approved by the Board of Regents on                                    |                         |  |
|--|-------------------------|--|
| Date   | Date                    |  |
| Clayton T. Christian   | Todd Buchanan           |  |
| Commissioner of Higher Education and Secretary to the Board of Regents | Chair, Board of Regents |  |